
University Senate Plenary

September 28, 2018



University Senate Proposed:  September 28, 2018 

Adopted:   September 28, 2018  

PROPOSED AGENDA 

University Senate 

Friday, September 28, 2018 at 1:15 p.m. 

Jerome L. Greene Science Center, 9th Floor Lecture Hall (Manhattanville Campus) 

1. Adoption of the agenda

2. Adoption of the minutes of April 27, 2018

3. President’s remarks

4. Executive Committee chair’s remarks:

a. Summer powers

b. Nominations to University Senate committees

c. Welcome new senators

5. New business:

a. Resolution to establish the Department of African-American and African Diaspora

Studies (Education Committee)

6. Committee reports:

a. Research Officers Committee

b. External Relations and Research Policy Committee

c. Alumni Relations Committee

d. Housing Policy Committee



University Senate Proposed: September 28, 2018 

Adopted:  September 28, 2018

MEETING OF APRIL 27, 2018 

In President Bollinger’s absence, Executive Committee chair Sharyn O’Halloran called the 

Senate to order shortly after 1:15 pm in 104 Jerome Greene. Fifty-eight of 99 senators were 

present during the meeting. 

Minutes and agenda. The Senate approved the minutes of March 30, 2018, and the agenda 

without corrections.  

Executive Committee chair’s remarks. 
Tributes to two Senate stalwarts. Sen. O’Halloran mentioned two colleagues whose main 

roles in the Senate were now coming to an end. The first, Howard Jacobson, was stepping down 

as Senate parliamentarian.  Mr. Jacobson, CC 1964, Law ’67, spent a decade in the law firm 

Kaye Scholer but returned to Columbia in 1979 to spend the rest of his career in the General 

Counsel’s office. For most of that time, she said, Mr. Jacobson was immersed in the work of the 

Senate, serving long stints on the Rules and Structure and Operations committees and becoming 

parliamentarian in the 1990s. Sen. O’Halloran said that when the going gets tough, the Senate 

gets procedural, and that’s when Mr. Jacobson’s expertise and calm demeanor were 

indispensable. Some of the contentious issues that challenged the Senate during Mr. Jacobson’s 

time included the return of ROTC to the Columbia campus, as well as sexual assault policy. Sen. 

O’Halloran thanked Mr. Jacobson for his contributions to the Senate. There was applause. 

Sen. O’Halloran then called attention to a longtime senator, Samuel Silverstein (Ten., P&S), who 

was stepping down after 15 years in the Senate. He came to Columbia in 1984, and in 2003 

added Senate service to his full-time duties as a Principal Investigator and chair of the 

Physiology Department. As chair of the Senate Libraries Committee, he championed the 

Libraries through bad years and good. He has also worked to broaden science education, 

founding the Columbia University Summer Research Program for Science Teachers. He has 

received the Mayor’s Award for Public Understanding of Science. He has also sought middle 

ground and offered thoughtful amendments and valuable criticism on Senate issues ranging from 

the return of ROTC to the 2007 campus visit of Iranian president Mahmoud Ahmadinejad. Last 

December, Sen. O’Halloran said, Sen. Silverstein took Columbia to task for what he considered 

its ineffective opposition to the Republican tax reform bill.  Sen. O’Halloran mentioned Sen. 

Silverstein’s devotion to exploration of Antarctica, which earned him an award from the National 

Geographic Society, and his tireless insistence on the need for a setting in Manhattanville where 

scientists and other academics could meet, make friends, and inspire each other intellectually. 

There was applause.  

Remarks from SAC vice chair Izzet Kebudi on an incident of bigotry (SEAS Undergrad). 

Sen. Kebudi said the leadership of SAC wanted to respond to some racist social-media posts and 

bigoted spam emails that were recently distributed among the student body at Barnard and some 



Senate minutes, April 27, 2018/page 2 of 15 

parts of the Columbia campus. These messages targeted students based on their identity or 

religious background, discouraging them from running for student government offices. Sen. 

Kebudi said messages of this kind are fundamentally undemocratic. All Columbia students 

should feel sufficiently comfortable and empowered to seek campus office. He said many 

members of student government, regardless of their race or ethnicity, have devoted many hours 

to the work of benefiting marginalized communities and students on campus. Sen. Kebudi said a 

student doesn’t have to be a member of a certain community to work closely with members of 

that community to effect positive change at Columbia. Some of the offensive posts called out 

Jewish students with anti-Semitic slurs, referring to them as snakes. Prejudiced assumptions led 

some of the students targeted in these posts to be misidentified by sexuality and ethnicity.  

Sen. Kebudi said the Columbia community should take an active role in noticing hate, calling it 

out, and explaining why it’s wrong through dialogue. He said that other communities might not 

have been targeted in recent weeks, but any community could be attacked, for hate is not 

exclusively focused on any single community. It can manifest itself in any community, and the 

only way to defeat it is to fight it in a truly inclusionary spirit. 

Sen. Kebudi invited fellow senators, at this last plenary of the academic year, to continue to 

stand against hate on campus, no matter what group is targeted. There was applause. 

Appeal from Suzanne Goldberg, Executive Vice President for University Life. EVP 

Goldberg associated herself with Sen. Kebudi’s statement. She said her own statement was 

simply a reminder to students present to take the Student Well-Being Survey that her office had 

sent out, and to encourage others to do so before the close of the survey on April 30. She said the 

survey was an attempt to put some hard data behind the problems and stressors—as well as the 

sources of a sense of wellness—in students’ lives. It also asked what kinds of incidents of sexual 

misconduct are occurring. She said the survey’s response rate has varied, with some CUMC 

schools above 45%, but some Morningside schools in the teens or low 20s. She said the per-

school completion rates for the surveys would be posted later that day. 

Resolutions 
Resolution Concerning Summer Powers. Sen. O’Halloran explained that the resolution, 

approved at the end of every Senate year, empowers the Senate Executive Committee to 

represent the Senate in all matters within its jurisdiction from the last plenary in the spring to the 

first one in the fall. The resolution was moved, seconded, and unanimously adopted.  

Resolution to Establish a Program Leading to an M.D./M.A. in Biomedical Informatics 

(P&S and GSAS) (Education Committee). Sen. Irving Herman (Ten., SEAS) presented the 

program. He said the proposal would combine two degrees so that students would work toward 

their M.D.’s for three years, then do the course work for the M.A. in Biomedical Informatics in 

the fourth year, and in the fifth year they would finish their MD studies and complete their 

research topic in their M.A. program. There are currently separate degrees in each discipline. 

Sen. Herman said this integrated structure would also benefit the students in both programs. 

http://senate.columbia.edu/archives/resolutions_archives/resolutions/17-18/summer_powers_20180427.pdf
http://senate.columbia.edu/archives/resolutions_archives/resolutions/17-18/md-ma_biomedical_informatics_res_20180427.pdf


Senate minutes, April 27, 2018/page 3 of 15 

 

Sen. Herman said six of the 30 credits in the M.A. program are also counted toward the M.D. 

Students can apply to the M.A. program in the fall of their third year of medical school. About 

five M.D. students a year have expressed interest in the joint program.  

Sen. Herman said no additional University resources are required for the joint program, and there 

are only three other programs like it in the country—at the Robert Wood Johnson Medical 

School at NJIT, at Vanderbilt, and at Stanford.  

 

Sen. Herman said the master’s year is self-funding. The subcommittee that reviewed the proposal 

for Education—Sens. Samuel Silverstein and Luna Koizumi (Stu., SPS)—expressed concern 

about this feature, noting that students will already be deeply in debt. But they recognized that 

this is standard operating procedure in the University, and that students enrolled in two stand-

alone programs would also have to pay for both.  

 

Sen. Herman said the proposal had the unanimous support of the Education Committee.   

He said Prof. Carol Friedman of Biomedical Informatics would run the program. She was not 

present at the meeting, but department chair George Hripcsak was present to answer questions. 

There were no questions.  

 

The Senate then unanimously approved the resolution to establish the joint program.  

 

 Resolution to Adopt a Revised Policy on Romantic and Sexual Relationships between 

Faculty/Staff and Undergraduate Students (Student Affairs, Commission on the Status of Women, 

Faculty Affairs). Sen. Kebudi, a member of a joint subcommittee that developed the present 

resolution, offered a student perspective. He said the main reason why students support the 

proposal is the inherent power dynamic in relationships between professors or teaching assistants 

or staff and undergraduate students. He believed that the proposed policy barring such 

relationships addresses the issue perfectly. He noted that at the very end of the resolution there 

was provision for exceptions in special situations. He said the Student Affairs Committee, which 

represents all of Columbia’s schools, held several discussions on the issue, and felt comfortable 

moving forward with the resolution.  

 

Sen. Jeanine D’Armiento (Ten., P&S), chair of the Commission on the Status of Women, and 

also a member of the subcommittee that drafted the proposed policy, invited questions.  

 

Sen. June Cross (Ten., Journalism) asked if the problems identified in the resolution are mainly 

concerned with student-faculty relationships or with problems among students.  

 

Sen. Suzanne Goldberg said that data on student sexual misconduct has been published for the 

last three years in an annual report on gender-based misconduct prevention and response, which 

is on the Sexual Respect website. Her office was also moving toward publishing more robust 

data for the entire university on both students and others.  

 

Sen. Cross asked if the Senate was offering a policy for a problem that has not been measured.   

 

Sen. O’Halloran said this is not a made-up problem, and Columbia is now the only member of its 

peer group that does not have a policy like the one now before the Senate.   

http://senate.columbia.edu/archives/resolutions_archives/resolutions/17-18/romantic_relationships_policy_res_20180427.pdf
http://senate.columbia.edu/archives/resolutions_archives/resolutions/17-18/romantic_relationships_policy_res_20180427.pdf


Senate minutes, April 27, 2018/page 4 of 15 

Sen. Kebudi said the present proposal is not mainly addressing sexual harassment. It is focused 

on the power dynamic between undergraduates and faculty and the problems that can result, 

which can be related to but are not the same as sexual harassment. 

Sen. D’Armiento said Columbia does not need a new policy disapproving of sexual harassment. 

Sen. Andreas Hielscher (Ten., SEAS) asked for data on relationships between faculty and 

undergrads. How many of these are there? How many are coercive or abusive? 

Sen. Goldberg said the University does not now collect data on consensual relationships between 

faculty and students at any level. 

Sen. D’Armiento repeated that the present resolution had nothing to do with sexual assault or 

harassment. And there is no data on the number of consensual relationships between 

undergraduates and faculty. She said the impetus for the present policy came from the students. 

Sen. Goldberg said there are data on relationships that students have reported as coercive or as 

harassing, but there has been no attempt to seek data on consensual relationships between 

students and faculty members, or even on students’ consensual romantic relationships in general. 

Sen. Kebudi asked to refocus the conversation on the subject of the present resolution. 

Sen. Anne Taylor asked how the resolution interacts with what in New York State is called the 

age of legal consent.  

Sen. Kebudi said there was no interaction at all between these topics.  The question, again, is not 

about whether a student is old enough to have a consensual relationship, but about the power 

dynamic in a relationship between a student and a faculty member.  

Sen. Taylor said she understood that point, but asked if the policy would ban an arrangement that 

is legally permissible.  

Sen. O’Halloran said many workplaces prohibit all romantic relationships, so that’s not 

extraordinary. She repeated that many peer institutions already have policies like this.  

Sen. Goldberg said the University certainly has the authority to set policy for these issues. What 

she was hearing from the proponents of the present resolution was also an intention to create a 

clear statement of the University’s values, with a recognition of some of the particular 

complications associated with the overwhelming majority of relationships that are likely to occur 

between a faculty member and an undergraduate student.  

Sen. Goldberg said that if Sen. Taylor was asking the very technical question whether the 

University can lawfully enact a policy that prohibits faculty from engaging in consensual 

relationships with undergraduate students while the faculty are employed here, the answer is yes. 



Senate minutes, April 27, 2018/page 5 of 15 

Sen. Eli Noam (Ten., Bus.) cited the expression “If you give a kid a hammer, the whole world 

looks like a nail.” At the moment, he said, there are committees with resolutions and the whole 

world and everyone who works here looks like another Harvey Weinstein. 

Sen. Noam said he understood the issues involved—including the academic authority of the 

faculty member that is lost in a romantic relationship with an undergraduate student. But he said 

that in many situations there is no such authority to be lost. He also understood that some 

students away from home for the first time may be vulnerable and need protection.  But these 

starting points don’t mean that what follows in the present resolution must be rubber-stamped.  

Sen. Noam said the resolution has some real problems, the first of which is a kind of mission 

creep.  The proponents assert a disparity of power between faculty and students—even if the 

faculty member is in the Medical School and the student is in Columbia College and they have 

nothing to do with each other. So there is the “dirty old man” scenario. But does it make sense to 

apply this to every officer of any kind on the campus? What is the relevant power disparity 

between the student and a librarian? Sen. Noam said it made little sense to extrapolate from a 

specific problem and to start painting with a broad brush.  

Sen. Noam criticized the exemption provision in the policy, which he said seemed to allow a 

kind of license of romance if you jump through enough bureaucratic hoops, appealing to the 

offices of the provost and the general counsel. He asked what the point of the policy was. 

Columbia admits students and calls them women and men, not boys and girls. They should be 

able to make their own romantic choices through their freedom of association, their right to 

privacy. The University is in fact taking away their right to choose, saying it knows better about 

students’ choices. The policy Columbia already has states that the institutional response “shall 

keep the students’ educational aims and needs foremost.” He noted that the accused—the faculty 

or staff member— can be accused totally anonymously because of the current imperative that 

officers must report what they know or have heard. Sen. Noam said such a climate seemed better 

suited to the University of East Berlin. He said the rights of that accused person are also clearly 

secondary to the students’ educational aims and needs. Sen. Noam said he had total sympathy 

with the students’ needs, but there are also the needs of the accused in a situation where due 

process is critically important. His suspicion about the proposed policy was that due process was 

not in the cards. He concluded that he applauded the work and the goals of the committees that 

had brought the present resolution, but the document now before the Senate was flawed. He 

moved that the document be returned to the Executive Committee for more work.  

Sen. D’Armiento stressed the point that the students brought the present issue to the Senate. She 

said the Commission on the Status of Women, which she chairs, had struggled with some of the 

points Sen. Noam had just outlined, particularly involving postdocs and other non-instructional 

officers. But she was at this meeting to support the students who had requested this policy.   

Sen. Kebudi said he appreciated some of Sen. Noam’s points. He said the present resolution was 

not addressing situations like those that have involved Harvey Weinstein. He said it would 

misrepresent reality to compare all faculty to Harvey Weinstein. But he said a power imbalance 

is a core challenge to an educational institution like Columbia. He also understood the 

importance of the faculty perspective and the issues of due process for the accused. But the key 



Senate minutes, April 27, 2018/page 6 of 15 

 

point was that this is an issue raised by the students, and it may be a particular challenge for 

faculty to see this issue from a student’s perspective. The power imbalance of a romantic 

relationship with a faculty member is an extremely difficult situation for a student. That why the 

proponents were trying to make a particular statement. He said the exclusions and provisions for 

special situations were precisely to cover situations in which both parties in the relationship feel 

comfortable, and the special provisions provide a way for them to disclose their relationship and 

continue it—the clearest evidence that the student really is comfortable. But if the student is not 

comfortable for whatever reason—regardless of whether the faculty and the student are in 

unrelated schools—how will they defend themselves? The discomfort may not involve a sexual 

harassment issue. There can be a problem much earlier. After all, Columbia is an educational 

institution, and what if the student does not feel comfortable about his or her assessment? And 

faculty are interconnected. It is essential not to approach students in such situations in a 

patronizing way.  

 

Sen. Noam said the approach of the proponents may be patronizing to fellow students. 

 

Sen. Hielscher said he had had discussions with faculty members in the Engineering School as 

well as undergraduates and other students. But if there is no data, and no attempt to survey the 

relevant positions, is there any evidence that this is really perceived as a problem by students? 

 

Sen. Sonya Nanda (Stu., Bus.), a Student Affairs Committee co-chair, said this issue had been 

discussed at length by student senators. It was also fully vetted in discussions with the senators’ 

constituents. She said multiple undergraduate students councils have talked about this and have 

supported the measure. Sen. Nanda also offered her own sentiments, based on five years in the 

business world. She noted that Columbia is also a business in certain respects. In her business 

experience, romantic relationships among employees were prohibited, with an important 

provision for disclosure and exceptions. The proposed policy for Columbia—including the 

exceptions policy—is not seriously different from that of any other business or corporation. She 

added that the fact that Columbia is one of the last among its peers to adopt such a policy adds to 

the urgency of the need to make a meaningful statement.  

 

Sen. Hielscher said that he and Sen. Nanda did not agree about the number of romantic 

relationships of all kinds that might exhibit a power imbalance like the one under discussion. He 

noted that the recent visit to the U.S. from French president Emanuel Macron. He’s 40, his wife 

is 65, and she was his teacher in high school. An 18-year-old student can give his or her kidney 

away, gamble, get full body tattoos, and make all kinds of silly decisions. New York has a 

divorce rate of 50%. Should marriage be outlawed?  

 

Sen. Nanda said the proposed policy would not stop people from making such decisions.  

But it provides a setting for formalizing a particular decision, as in any other corporations in 

which one is an employee.  

 

Sen. Letty Moss-Salentijn (Ten., CDM) spoke as co-chair of the Faculty Affairs Committee. She 

said FAC supported the proposal, but in a split vote: 10-6, with one abstention. The no votes 

were closely aligned with Sen. Noam’s arguments, based on a desire to support the students but 

also some serious concerns. She asked FAC member Michael Rosen (Ten., P&S) to speak.  



Senate minutes, April 27, 2018/page 7 of 15 

Sen. Rosen recalled an old Russian saying: “Words are like birds; once uttered they fly off and 

take on a meaning all their own.” He said the Senate had heard wonderful and important 

sentiments during the present discussion, but the words in the proposed resolution didn’t do them 

justice. He said that until they do, the resolution needs more work. At present, he (and some of 

his colleagues on Faculty Affairs) found the resolution very difficult to support. The problem is 

most clearly evident in the document’s final paragraph, which he considered a flat-out Orwellian 

statement, making Provost John Coatsworth the head of the sex police, empowered to give 

everybody a get-out-of-jail-free card if they ask for it the right way. Sen. Rosen said the Senate 

was not ready to vote on this resolution.  

Sen. Joseph Ulichny (NT, A&S/Pure Sciences) asked what the consequences of the proposed 

policy would be for an undergraduate TA in an undergraduate chemistry class. Would the policy 

prohibit the undergraduate TA from dating another undergrad?  

Sen. O’Halloran said that understanding was correct: the TA could not date an undergrad.  

Sen. D’Armiento said the prohibition might be lifted if the couple talked to Provost Coatsworth. 

Sen. Ulichny asked whether he would have to ask any TA joining his teaching team whether he 

or she was dating another student.  

Sen. D’Armiento said there are always nuances to consider, and Senate committees had 

discussed a number of them. The bottom line for the Commission on the Status of Women was 

that the students unanimously request the proposed policy, and are deeply concerned about the 

power dynamic.  She added that it was the Commission that sought a provision for exceptions.  

Sen. Kebudi said it was not right to say that what the proponents were doing was patronizing. He 

stressed that the resolution received the unanimous support of the Student Affairs Committee. 

The subcommittee also sought opinions from undergraduates and student councils. He had 

multiple conversations in his school—SEAS—and did not hear any arguments against the 

resolution. He said the proponents were not patronizing, but were reflecting student opinion.  

Sen. Noam said that, with all due respect, this is not a decision to be made by majority vote. 

Even if 99 percent of people agreed with the resolution, that would entitle them to constrain the 

romantic choices of the other 1 percent.  

Sen. D’Armiento said no one is interested in constraining people’s relationships. The goal is to 

establish a policy. She said someone had put it well that this resolution commits the University to 

taking an institutional stand on this issue.  

Sen. Susan McGregor (NT, Journalism) recalled that the Senate had passed a statement on 

academic freedom a few months earlier, a principle that was clearly distinct from that of freedom 

of expression. The academic freedom statement essentially acknowledged the fact that Columbia 

as an academic institution has priorities that may involve curtailing—or perhaps adjusting—our 

behaviors that affect other parts of our lives. U.S. citizens have freedom of expression, but 



Senate minutes, April 27, 2018/page 8 of 15 

Columbia chooses as a community to communicate with each other in a particular way in an 

academic setting for the sake of academic ends. 

Sen. McGregor said her perspective on the present resolution was analogous. She said she found 

herself hard-pressed to understand how permitting relationships between undergraduates and 

faculty or staff furthers the mission of this university. For her the real challenge is, What purpose 

does allowing these relationships serve? What advantage does Columbia gain as an academic 

and educational institution by refusing to have a procedure to govern these situations?  She also 

noted that on various procedural questions involving anonymous reporting in recent years, the 

Faculty Affairs Committee—of which she is a member—had reached conclusions that it felt 

comfortable with. She was optimistic that reporting on questions involving relationships between 

undergraduates and faculty could be handled in similarly satisfactory ways.  

Sen. McGregor said she didn’t see how it was possible to accuse only one person of a consensual 

relationship. To suggest that a consensual relationship between a faculty member and a student is 

ongoing implies the responsibility of both parties. She said this important point is not fully 

acknowledged in the present policy document. Sen. McGregor said this fact is essential in 

distinguishing between this policy and a policy on harassment or assault: if both parties are 

responsible for the relationship, some of the concerns about false accusations may be less 

important. She said people understand general that the incidence of false reports is much lower 

than that of failures to report genuine problems. Anyone making an unfounded accusation of a 

consensual relationship would be necessarily impugning both parties—an undergraduate and a 

faculty member or teaching assistant. She said this issue deserves consideration as well.  

Sen. James Applegate (Ten., A&S/Pure Sciences) said he was one of the FAC members who 

voted against the proposed resolution. His main reason was that the situations involving 

problematic power dynamics between a faculty member and a student are already against the 

rules, which prohibit relationships between faculty and students in which the faculty member 

exercises academic authority over the student. He noted that these rules are not taken as seriously 

or enforced as they should be. But they are in place. The problem is that the University doesn’t 

do what it already says it is going to do. The difference between the present resolution and the 

actual current policy involve relationships where the faculty member and student met socially, 

and will never see one another in a classroom or in a laboratory or a library. In such cases the 

“power imbalance” simply does not exist. If someone insists on seeing all relationships as power 

relationships, as some people do, that’s more a statement about that person than about 

relationships. Sen. Applegate considered this a dehumanized and impoverished view of human 

life, which he did not care to be governed by.   

Sen. Applegate said his main concern was that the present resolution was largely a distraction. 

He said a lot of noise is made about it. But the actual value-added, in his view, is to condemn 

relationships that are not problematic, and the real problem with it, in addition to the objections 

about due process and related issues raised by Sen. Noam and others (with which he mainly 

agreed) was that it doesn’t do the difficult work of solving the real problems he had mentioned. 

Sen. D’Armiento said the proposed policy does differ from the previous policy, adopted in 

March 2012. That policy prohibited only relationships in which the faculty member has 



Senate minutes, April 27, 2018/page 9 of 15 

 

academic authority of some kind over the student. The present policy bans all relationships 

between faculty and undergraduates.  

 

Sen. Applegate said the proposed policy is fixing situations that are not problematic and not 

fixing situations that are. Sen. D’Armiento repeated that the proposal addresses a situation that 

students perceive as a problem.  

 

Sen. O’Halloran said one concern about the current policy is that it does not cover all of the 

types of academic authority that a professor can exercise over a student. For example, it does not 

mention awards nominations.  The new proposal provides a way to draw a bright line that 

prevents any possibility of an abuse of academic authority. It also actually protects the faculty 

member as well as the student.  

 

Sen. Kebudi agreed. 

 

Sen. D’Armiento said the proponents were prepared to say more about their decision to focus 

exclusively on undergraduates in the present resolution.  

 

Sen. Shelley Saltzman (NT, SPS) thought it would be obvious that awards nominations would be 

one kind of academic authority a professor might have over a students.  

 

Sen. O’Halloran said it was possible that the professor and/or the student might not know in 

advance that the professor would be on an awards committee in which the student was under 

consideration, or that the student would be doing an honors thesis that would be reviewed by the 

professor. So there are numerous unanticipated scenarios that could take place. But the answer to 

the question of what’s right for the institution and its mission, what provides adequate 

protections for both the student as well as the faculty, what allows the institution to have 

consistent, enforceable policies.  

 

Sen. D’Armiento said the goal of the present proposal was to empower undergraduates to be able 

to hold onto this policy in any situation that may be not necessarily as clearly consensual as the 

faculty member may think. She said proponents of the present resolution have thought and talked 

a lot about the faculty. But the truth of the matter is that if an undergraduate has this policy in 

place, he or she is very much protected if something happens. There will have to be additional 

recommendations about graduate students, but these exclusively concern undergrads.  

 

Provost Coatsworth said it is factually incorrect to say that Columbia doesn’t have adequate, 

even enthusiastic and in some cases draconian enforcement of existing rules. It is impossible to 

read The New York Times without understanding this. And what appears in the Times is only the 

tip of the iceberg of what comes through his office. The provost said Columbia has a very strong 

policy. It has tripled the number of people who are enforcing it, including professional 

investigators. When the University determines that someone is responsible for violating the 

policy, that person suffers serious sanctions. He said he wanted to clear up the current myth that 

the current policy was not being enforced. It is being enforced, and the process is painful, as he 

can attest from experience.  

 



Senate minutes, April 27, 2018/page 10 of 15 

Sen. Silverstein suggested that the problem was that there was no way of requiring that the 1 

percent of romantic relationships that are genuinely consensual and without academic conflicts 

of interest be recorded someplace. Ninety-nine percent of those relationships may be legitimately 

prohibited, but there are bound to be a few genuinely consensual relationships between faculty 

and students. Shouldn’t those be recorded?  

Sen. O’Halloran said that was exactly the kind of disclosure that was laid out in the protocol for 

exceptions at the very end of the present proposal, on page 4. Such information could be 

provided publicly, on a website, though that didn’t seem appropriate. Instead, the disclosure 

could be made to a supervisor—a chair, a dean, or the provost.  

Sen. O’Halloran said that in some settings the approach is prohibition unless the relationship is 

disclosed. In other settings the policy is zero tolerance for such relationships.  

Sen. Julia Hirschberg (Ten., SEAS), a professor of computer science, offered strong support for 

the proposal and the students who requested it. She recalled having the same feelings as an 

undergraduate that current students are reporting now. She said the concern needn’t be about 

faculty who directly advise you; it might involve any faculty member who approaches you. She 

said her own students also find it difficult to deal with such situations because they don’t know 

what kind of power a faculty member may eventually or currently have over them. She urged 

senators to vote for the proposed resolution.  

Sen. O’Halloran agreed with Sen. Hirschberg’s assessment. Only someone who has been in the 

student’s situation really understands the difficulty of these encounters, when the student doesn’t 

want to upset someone, and has to try to wiggle out of the situation without making the faculty 

member angry because the student knows the faculty member will be grading their exam. Sen. 

O’Halloran said these difficult situations are pervasive. She regretted that she didn’t have data, 

but there are lots of data from experience.  She said these phenomena are real, and persistent, 

with serious effects on the quality of education of Columbia students, and students shouldn’t 

have to worry about such things. She said that if someone is really serious about having a 

relationship, talking to the Provost should be the least of their worries.  

Sen. Kebudi said he was open to talking more, but he also thought it might be time to end the 

present conversation.  

Sen. O’Halloran asked for a motion to end debate. 

Sen. Lisa Rosen-Metsch (Dean, GS; Admin.) said she could think of a few instances of General 

Studies students who are married to faculty.   

Sen. O’Halloran said such examples tend to come from General Studies, where many students 

are adults. She mentioned the example of a 40-year-old female vet who wants to date the 27-

year-old male professor. Having exceptions for such situations would be valuable, but disclosure 

is absolutely necessary.  

Sen. Rosen-Metsch said GS had a professor whose partner wanted to enroll as a GS student. 



Senate minutes, April 27, 2018/page 11 of 15 

 

 

Sen. O’Halloran said this would be another obvious case for routine disclosure. Such cases don’t 

reflect negatively on anyone. It’s just a fairly common situation, like that of a married couple 

who are hired into the same department.  

 

Sen. Taylor said she sympathized with the principle of the resolution, but suggested that the 

framing of the policy should focus on the disclosure instead of on a broad prohibition of 

relationships. She said she still struggled with the idea that Columbia students may have the right 

to vote and to fight our wars on foreign soil—but not to have a romantic relationship.  

 

Sen. O’Halloran said 18-year-olds are not allowed to drink. Sen. Taylor said that may be true of 

New York State, but not in others. She repeated that since the relationships in question are truly 

consensual, perhaps the policy should focus on a few steps people can take to disclose them.   

 

Sen. Greg Freyer (NT, Public Health), a member of Faculty Affairs and of the subcommittee 

presenting the present resolution, said that students wonder whether a relationship with their 

professor can be truly consensual in a situation where the professor has so much power over 

them. Sen. Freyer said that’s why students are uncomfortable and that’s what they’re asking for 

protection from.  

 

Sen. D’Armiento noted that faculty senators are saying they want students to have freedom, but 

students are telling the Senate that they voted unanimously for the present proposal. That request 

is what guided the Commission on the Status of Women to its present position.   

 

Sen. Nanda moved to call the question.  

 

Sen. Noam offered a point of procedure. He said he had already made a motion to send the 

resolution back to the Executive Committee to work on some of the problems raised at the 

present meeting.  

 

Sen. O’Halloran asked if Sen. Noam was moving to table the resolution.  

 

Sen. Noam said he was moving to return the resolution for redrafting.  

 

Sen. O’Halloran said she had called the question previously.  

 

Sen. Noam said he had made his motion when he spoke for the first time.  

 

Mr. Jacobson, the parliamentarian, said that when someone calls the question and receives a 

second, the motion is not debatable, and stops any amendment. A motion to call the question 

requires a two-thirds vote, and cuts off debate.  

 

Sen. Noam replied that he said specifically when he first addressed the body that he wanted to 

make a motion to send the resolution back to the Executive Committee. 

 



Senate minutes, April 27, 2018/page 12 of 15 

Sen. D’Armiento asked if Sen. Noam wanted modifications to the last paragraph—the exceptions 

procedure—or to the whole resolution.  

Sen. Noam said he wanted to return the whole document for redrafting.  

Sen. O’Halloran asked again if Sen. Noam was tabling the resolution.  

Mr. Jacobson and Sen. O’Halloran asked Sen. Noam what his intention was. 

Mr. Jacobson asked if Sen. Noam was postponing the resolution to a date certain. 

Sen. Noam said he was postponing the resolution to the next Senate plenary subsequent to a 

potential redrafting by the Executive Committee. 

Mr. Jacobson asked if Sen. Noam wanted to ask the Executive Committee to reconsider the 

resolution. He pointed out that Sen. Noam could not tell the Executive Committee what they will 

do with the resolution.  

Sen. Noam agreed with Mr. Jacobson’s account of his intention.  

Mr. Jacobson determined that there was a second to Sen. Noam’s motion. 

Sen. O’Halloran asked the Senate to vote on Sen. Noam’s motion.  

Mr. Jacobson said the decision would be made by majority vote.  

Sen. O’Halloran said the motion called for sending the resolution back to the Executive 

Committee to reconsider it, with the possibility of bringing it back to the next plenary.  

Sen. O’Halloran said that if Sen. Noam’s motion were not to pass, the Senate would go on to 

vote on the proposed resolution.  

Mr. Jacobson put the motion to a vote. 

Sen. O’Halloran announced the result: by show of hands, 17 were in favor, 28 opposed, with one 

abstention. She said the motion failed.  

Sen. Nanda moved for a vote on the proposed resolution. 

Sen. O’Halloran determined that there was a second, and that the Senate should vote. She 

explained that the Senate was now in the midst of a procedural motion, and no other questions 

could be considered. The result, by show of hands, was 28 in favor, 9 opposed, with 7 

abstentions. Sen. O’Halloran said the motion had passed.  

Sen. Ian Lipkin (Ten., Public Health) said he had voted for the resolution, but he had some 

concerns about how the resolution was addressed. He was unhappy about the comment during 



Senate minutes, April 27, 2018/page 13 of 15 

 

the debate to the effect that it was OK for a 40-year-old woman to date a 27-year-old man. He 

said the comment was inappropriate and trivialized the whole process.   

 

Sen. O’Halloran, who had made the comment, said she had been simply trying to offer an 

alternative to the typical power dynamic.  

 

Sen. Lipkin reminded Sen. O’Halloran that she had given him the floor.  He said that the point 

was made clearly that whenever there is a power dynamic there should be no option for any 

individual to have a romantic relationship, and the Provost had stated quite clearly that that 

restriction is enforced. Sen. Lipkin said he thought it was critically important to separate these 

two issues. The students were interested in ensuring that undergraduates are not in a situation 

where they might feel uncomfortable. Sen. Lipkin was sympathetic to that position. He said Sen. 

Metsch had mentioned appropriately that in the School of General Studies there are situations 

where people are already married, and so there has to be some sort of provision for them. 

 

Sen. Lipkin said that if the group had started by following Sen. Taylor’s suggestion, with the 

idea that there are relationships that are honest and sincere and precede any sort of academic 

relationship, and these need to be supported in some way with open disclosure, and then gone 

into the discussion of what it means to start a new relationship where you have undergraduates 

and others over whom you may at some point have authority, then the resolution might have 

gotten more votes. But Sen. Lipkin also said it’s important to undertake such discussions without 

levity or hyperbole, and stay focused on the important issues.  

 

Sen. O’Halloran thanked Sen. Lipkin for his remarks, and apologized for her own. 

 

Committee Annual reports. 
 Alumni Relations. Committee co-chair Kurt Roeloffs gave a brief oral report and said the 

formal written report would be deferred till September. He said Alumni Relations this year 

continued to discuss career development, lifelong learning, entrepreneurship, and Global Centers 

in search of ways to create more alumni engagement and to leverage the alumni community, 

320,000 strong. But the major focus, as it was the previous year, was on the CU there! initiative, 

which enables students during their breaks from school to connect with alumni through the 

various established alumni organizations, chapters and special interest groups (SIGs). CU there! 

was a strong success, with more than 3000 students signing up for dozens of activities. Now the 

committee is revising CU there! in order to deal with some problems that arose during the first 

summer. The main problem was that there was a high degree of registration but then a lot of 

fallout, or student no-shows, which were frustrating to alumni groups. Students were allowed to 

register far ahead of time for as many events as they wanted, and then many of them got busy 

with other activities. So the committee is now slowing the registration process down, and making 

sure that students are more committed to the event they sign up for. But there is an enormous 

amount of student interest again.  

 

Sen. Roeloffs urged student senators to sign up for an activity, try it out, and provide feedback. 

He invited the other caucuses of the Senate to take a look at this program as a way for them to 

create more engagement with alumni. He suggested that faculty or researchers who are alumni 

might want to participate in one of these alumni events. He promised an update in September.  



Senate minutes, April 27, 2018/page 14 of 15 

Campus Planning and Physical Development Committee. Committee chair John 

Donaldson presented a written report, which is linked here. 

Sen. Silverstein noted that the committee did not report on one issue on which it had done 

significant work—the subways. He said the 168th Street #1 train station will be closed for a year 

to renovate the elevators. That station had been slightly upgraded, but it was still an abomination. 

There is no ADA-accessible elevator service from the #1 train. For the largest hospital in 

Manhattan to be inaccessible to disabled people from one of its major trains is a disgrace.  

Sen. Silverstein said Campus Planning had also called attention this year to the 125th Street #1 

train station, with its defective escalator. So far the University has given little sense of how it 

will respond to these problems, which will have an impact on anyone going to the 

Manhattanville campus or the Medical Center. He urged Campus Planning to press the 

University on these problems with some urgency in the coming year.  

Sen. Donaldson agreed with Sen. Silverstein. He said the committee had had some trouble 

finding out who on campus is in direct contact with the MTA, but it would succeed eventually.  

Commission on the Status of Women. Commission chair Jeanine D’Armiento said the 

Commission had handed out a single page. The statistics on the first half of the page were 

consistent with the data that the group had presented in its February 2  report to the Senate. Since 

that report the Commission has focused on presenting recommendations to the Medical Center 

based on those findings. The group recognizes that there have been numerous programs to 

support individual faculty in their efforts to advance their careers, but it also thinks that women 

would benefit particularly if there was a significant institutional change to improve the equity at 

the leadership level. She said this proposal was one item on a list of recommendations in the one-

pager.  Sen. D’Armiento was pleased to report that the Commission had recently met with Deans 

Lee Goldman and Anne Taylor of P&S, and was moving forward with discussions. Next year, in 

addition to following up on this work with the Medical Center, the Commission will move on to 

a pipeline study of the Law School.  

Student Affairs Committee. SAC co-chairs Sonya Nanda and Izzet Kebudi presented a 

written report, which is linked here. Sen. Nanda also thanked the faculty for a robust discussion 

on the resolution earlier in the meeting. She recognized that the resolution was controversial, and 

expressed appreciation for the Senate’s support on an issue students feel passionately about.  

Sen. Nanda announced that she would be graduating and the other chairs—Sens. Kebudi and 

Josh Schenk—would not be on the Senate next year. She introduced Vice Chair Elect Indira 

Martinez, (Social Work) and announced next year’s co-chairs, Kira Dennis (Barnard) and 

Artrease Benoit (Business), who had had to leave the meeting.  

Sen. Martinez expressed enthusiasm for the task of carrying on the work of this year’s leaders. 

She said she would be remiss if she failed to note the current student activism at Columbia. She 

affirmed SAC’s support for the recent vote in favor of a graduate student union. She stressed that 

http://senate.columbia.edu/archives/reports_archive/17-18/cppd_annual_report_2017-2018.pdf
http://senate.columbia.edu/archives/reports_archive/17-18/cppd_annual_report_2017-2018.pdf
http://senate.columbia.edu/archives/reports_archive/17-18/cppd_annual_report_2017-2018.pdf
http://senate.columbia.edu/archives/reports_archive/17-18/cppd_annual_report_2017-2018.pdf
http://senate.columbia.edu/archives/reports_archive/17-18/cppd_annual_report_2017-2018.pdf
http://senate.columbia.edu/archives/reports_archive/17-18/sac_annual_report_2017-2018.pdf


Senate minutes, April 27, 2018/page 15 of 15 

she saw this development as an opportunity to foster dialogue, not to shut it down. She said she 

had seen how successful collaborative effort has been during the present Senate session.   

Sen. Noam praised Sen. Nanda—one of his own students—for her representation of the Business 

School student community. He said she would receive the Business School’s award at graduation 

for student leadership and service.  

Education Committee. This report was not presented.  

Other reports 
Advisory Committee on Socially Responsible Investing annual update (Prof. Merritt Fox, 

chair). Prof. Fox said the ACSRI, established in 2000, advises the Trustees on ethical and social 

issues that arise in connection with their management of the University’s endowment. The 

committee has twelve voting members: four students, four faculty and four alumni. Its homepage 

is on the University’s Finance Gateway web page. 

The ACSRI’s main activities involve proxy votes and divestment proposals. Prof. Fox said the 

committee was now in the midst of proxy season. For proxy proposals, there tends to be a flavor 

of the day, and this year the theme is lobbying and political expenditures. The proposals call on 

corporations to report more than what the SEC requires them to report. In most cases the ACSRI 

advises the University to support these proposals. The other main proxy proposals this year relate 

to global warming and sustainability, typically asking corporations to report publicly on what 

they’re doing to develop a sustainable footprint in their operations. 

Divestment, the committee’s other main focus, is considered an extraordinary remedy, but there 

are several industries on the University’s divestment list: companies involved in the Sudan, 

tobacco companies, private prisons, and another industry added last year—thermal coal. Each 

year the committee reviews the list of companies that the ACSRI has advised the University to 

divest from or not purchase in each of these industries. It also reviews new divestment proposals, 

including one this year from the Roosevelt Institute, a student think tank, calling for divestment 

from any investment fund that itself has investments in thermal coal. The University has already 

divested from its direct holdings in thermal coal, but decided not to go forward with the new 

proposal, in part because it had already been considered just last year in connection with the 

larger thermal coal proposal and also because the dynamic nature of these funds makes it very 

difficult to impose such a prohibition. The only practical way to ban indirect investments is to 

announce that Columbia won’t invest in any fund that in turn won’t pledge never to invest in 

thermal coal.  

 Presidential Advisory Committee on Sexual Assault Annual Report 2017-2018 (EVP for 

University Life Suzanne Goldberg and Dennis Mitchell, Vice Provost for Faculty Diversity and 

Inclusion, co-chairs). EVP Goldberg and Provost Mitchell presented the written report, which is 

linked here.  

Adjournment. There being no further business, Sen. O’Halloran adjourned the meeting shortly 

before 3 pm.  

Respectfully submitted, Tom Mathewson, Senate staff 

http://senate.columbia.edu/archives/reports_archive/17-18/education_annual_report_2017-2018.pdf
http://senate.columbia.edu/archives/reports_archive/17-18/education_annual_report_2017-2018.pdf
http://senate.columbia.edu/archives/reports_archive/17-18/pacsa_annual_report_2017-18.pdf


UNIVERSITY SENATE

COMMITTEE ROSTERS 2018‐2019

Delegation Full name Chair Constituency
Senator / 

Nonsenator
Contact

Ten. James Applegate A&S/PS Sen. jha@astro.columbia.edu

Ten. Jeanine D’Armiento P&S Sen. jmd12@cumc.columbia.edu

Ten. Andreas Hielscher SEAS Sen. ahh2004@columbia.edu

Ten. Clarisa Long LAW Sen. clong@law.columbia.edu

Ten. Letty Moss‐Salentijn CDM Sen. lm23@cumc.columbia.edu

Ten. Sharyn O'Halloran Chair SIPA Sen. so33@columbia.edu

Nonten. Greg Freyer SPH Sen. gaf1@cumc.columbia.edu

Nonten. Soulaymane Kachani SEAS Sen. kachani@ieor.columbia.edu

Stu. Art Benoit BUS Sen. abenoit19@gsb.columbia.edu

Stu. Kira Dennis BAR Sen. kd2480@barnard.edu

Stu. James Piacentini GSAPP Sen. j.piacentini@columbia.edu

Admin. Lee C. Bollinger Adm. Sen. lcb50@columbia.edu

Admin. John H. Coatsworth Adm. Sen. jhc2125@columbia.edu

Ten. Open . . .

Nonten. Dorothea Lasky ARTS Sen. dsl2121@columbia.edu

Stu. Art Benoit BUS Sen. abenoit19@gsb.columbia.edu

Research Officers Hanbin Dan Research Officers ‐ Professional Observer hd2291@cumc.columbia.edu

Admin. Donna MacPhee Adm. Nonsen. dhm18@columbia.edu

Alum. Michelle Estilo Kaiser Co‐Chair Alum. Sen. mjekaiser@gmail.com

Alum. Sharon Liebowitz Co‐Chair Alum. Sen. sjliebowitz@gmail.com

Ten. June Cross JOURN Sen. jcross@columbia.edu

Ten. Matthew L. Jones A&S/SS Sen. mjones@columbia.edu

Ten. John Mutter A&S/PS Sen. jcm7@columbia.edu

Ten. Eli M. Noam BUS Sen. noam@columbia.edu

Ten. Howard Worman P&S  Sen. hjw14@cumc.columbia.edu

Nonten. Soulaymane Kachani Chair SEAS Sen. kachani@ieor.columbia.edu

Nonten. Joseph Ulichny A&S/PS Nonsen. jcu2102@columbia.edu

Stu. Eric D. Tang LAW Sen. edt2109@columbia.edu

Stu. Andrew Hsu GSAS/PS Sen. andrew.hsu@columbia.edu

Research Officers Daniel Savin Research Officers ‐ Professional Sen. savin@astro.columbia.edu

Alum. Sharon Liebowitz Alum. Sen. sjliebowitz@gmail.com

Ten. Sharyn O'Halloran SIPA Sen. so33@columbia.edu

Executive Committee (13)

Alumni Relations Committee (7)

Budget Review Committee (12)

Prepared by Senate Office page 1 of 7 Updated 9/27/2018



UNIVERSITY SENATE

COMMITTEE ROSTERS 2018‐2019

Ten. David R. Bickers P&S Sen. drb25@cumc.columbia.edu

Ten. John B. Donaldson Chair BUS Sen. jd34@columbia.edu

Ten. Andreas Hielscher SEAS Sen. ahh2004@columbia.edu

Ten. Mary Mundinger NURS Sen. mm44@cumc.columbia.edu

Ten. Open . . .

Nonten. Patrice Derrington Vice Chair GSAPP Sen. pad2160@columbia.edu

Nonten. Ellen F. Morris BAR Sen. emorris@barnard.edu

Stu. James Piacentini GSAPP Sen. j.piacentini@columbia.edu

Stu. Danielle Resheff CC Sen. dr2886@columbia.edu

Stu. Julie Yoshimachi NURS Sen. jy2519@cumc.columbia.edu

Libraries  Aline Locascio Libraries Nonsen. al230@columbia.edu

Admin. Staff Open

Research Officers Stefaan Van Liefferinge Research Officers ‐ Professional Sen. sv143@columbia.edu

Admin. Janet Horan Adm. Nonsen. jih6@columbia.edu

Admin.  James Wang   Adm. Nonsen. jw2547@columbia.edu

Alum. Julia Lewis Alum. Nonsen. julia.b.lewis@gmail.com

Ten. James Applegate Co‐Chair A&S/PS Sen. jha@astro.columbia.edu

Ten. Nigel Bunnett P&S Sen. nb2733@cumc.columbia.edu

Ten. Irving Herman SEAS Sen. iph1@columbia.edu

Ten. W. Ian Lipkin SPH Sen. wil2001@cumc.columbia.edu

Ten. Letty Moss‐Salentijn Co‐Chair CDM Sen. lm23@cumc.columbia.edu

Ten. Michelle Knight‐Manuel TC Sen. knight@tc.columbia.edu

Ten. Douglas Ready TC Sen. ready@tc.edu

Ten. Open . . .

Nonten. Shelley Saltzman SPS Sen. sas5@columbia.edu

Nonten. Joseph Ulichny A&S/PS Nonsen. jcu2102@columbia.edu

Nonten. Mary Zulack LAW Sen. mzulack@law.columbia.edu

Stu. Kira Dennis BAR Sen. kd2480@barnard.edu

Stu. Luna Koizumi SPS Sen. lk2708@columbia.edu

Stu. Gordon Slater ARTS Sen. gas2152@columbia.edu

Stu. Michael Sutton SEAS Sen. mms2306@columbia.edu

Libraries  Candice Kail Libraries Nonsen. cak2158@columbia.edu

Admin. Melissa Begg Adm. Nonsen. mdb3@columbia.edu

Admin. Catherine E. Ross Adm. Nonsen. cr2979@columbia.edu

Alum. Tao Tan Alum. Nonsen. tt2124@caa.columbia.edu

Campus Planning and Physical Development Committee (16)

Education Committee (19)

Prepared by Senate Office page 2 of 7 Updated 9/27/2018



UNIVERSITY SENATE

COMMITTEE ROSTERS 2018‐2019

Ten. Jeanine D’Armiento P&S Sen. jmd12@cumc.columbia.edu

Ten. Mary Gamble SPH Sen. mvg7@cumc.columbia.edu

Ten. Eli M. Noam BUS Sen. noam@columbia.edu

Ten. Samuel Sia SEAS Nonsen. ss2735@columbia.edu

Ten. Howard Worman Chair P&S  Sen. hjw14@cumc.columbia.edu

Ten. Open . . .

Ten. Open . . .

Nonten. William Duggan BUS Sen. wrd3@columbia.edu

Nonten. Megan Mroczkowski Vice Chair P&S Sen. mmm2323@cumc.columbia.edu

Stu. Toqa Badran CC Sen. tmb2169@columbia.edu

Stu. Jonathan Criswell GS Sen. jonathan.criswell@columbia.edu

Stu. Luna Koizumi SPS Sen. lk2708@columbia.edu

Libraries William Vanti Libraries Nonsen. wbv2101@columbia.edu

Research Officers Manuela Buonanno Research Officers ‐ Professional Sen. mb3591@columbia.edu

Research Officers Stefaan Van Liefferinge Research Officers ‐ Professional Sen. sv143@columbia.edu

Admin. Karen E. Jewett Adm. Nonsen. kej1@columbia.edu

Admin. Naomi Schrag Adm. Nonsen. ns2333@columbia.edu

Alum. Michelle Estilo Kaiser Alum. Sen. mjekaiser@gmail.com

Ten. James Applegate A&S/PS Sen. jha@astro.columbia.edu

Ten. Raimondo Betti SEAS Sen. betti@civil.columbia.edu

Ten. Victor de la Pena A&S/PS Nonsen. vhd1@columbia.edu

Ten. Jane Gaines ARTS Nonsen. jmg2196@columbia.edu

Ten. Irving Herman SEAS Sen. iph1@columbia.edu

Ten. Clarisa Long Co‐Chair LAW Sen. clong@law.columbia.edu

Ten. Mignon Moore BAR Sen. mmoore@barnard.edu

Ten. Letty Moss‐Salentijn Co‐Chair CDM Sen. lm23@cumc.columbia.edu

Ten. Robert Pollack A&S/PS  Sen. pollack@columbia.edu

Ten. Douglas Ready TC Sen. ready@tc.edu

Ten. Michael R. Rosen P&S Sen. mrr1@cumc.columbia.edu

Ten. Richard Smiley P&S  Sen. rms7@cumc.columbia.edu

Ten. Nachum Sicherman BUS Sen. nachum.sicherman@columbia.edu

Nonten. Greg Freyer SPH Sen. gaf1@cumc.columbia.edu

Nonten. Ellen Marakowitz A&S/SS Sen. em8@columbia.edu

Nonten. Susan McGregor JOURN Sen. sem2196@columbia.edu

Nonten. Nicole Wallack A&S/HUM Sen. nicolewallack@columbia.edu

External Relations and Research Policy Committee (18)

Faculty Affairs, Academic Freedom and Tenure (17)

Prepared by Senate Office page 3 of 7 Updated 9/27/2018



UNIVERSITY SENATE

COMMITTEE ROSTERS 2018‐2019

Ten. Vincent Blasi LAW Sen. blasi@law.columbia.edu

Ten. David Hajdu JOURN Nonsen. dh2145@gmail.com

Ten. Retired Allen Hyman P&S Nonsen. allen.hyman@gmail.com

Ten. W. Ian Lipkin SPH Sen. wil2001@cumc.columbia.edu

Ten. Eli M. Noam BUS Sen. noam@columbia.edu

Ten. Debra Wolgemuth Chair P&S Sen. djw3@cumc.columbia.edu

Nonten. Sarah Azaransky UTS Sen. sazaransky@uts.columbia.edu

Nonten. Ellen F. Morris BAR Sen. emorris@barnard.edu

Stu. Mike Ford GSAS/HUM Sen. mlf2191@columbia.edu

Stu. James Piacentini GSAPP Sen. j.piacentini@columbia.edu

Libraries  Ian Beilin Libraries Sen. igb4@columbia.edu

Research Officers Angela D. Nelson Research Officers ‐ Staff Sen. adn2006@columbia.edu

Admin. Carlos J. Alonso Adm. Sen. ca2201@columbia.edu

Admin.  Deborah Martinsen Adm. Nonsen. dm387@columbia.edu

Alum. Hartley du Pont Alum. Nonsen. hartleydupont@aol.com

Ten. Donald Davis A&S/SS Nonsen. drdavis@columbia.edu

Ten. Jeffrey N. Gordon  LAW Nonsen. jgordon@law.columbia.edu

Ten. Andreas Hielscher Co‐Chair SEAS Sen. ahh2004@columbia.edu

Ten. Weiping Wu GSAPP Sen. weiping.wu@columbia.edu

Nonten. William Duggan Co‐Chair BUS Sen. wrd3@columbia.edu

Nonten. Open . .

Stu. Sally Xing GSAS/SS Sen. cx2186@columbia.edu

Stu. Open . . .

Research Officers Regina Martuscello Research Officers ‐ Postdoctoral Sen. rm3419@columbia.edu

Admin. Troy Eggers  Adm. Nonsen. te99@columbia.edu

Admin.  James Wang   Adm. Nonsen. jw2547@columbia.edu

Ten. Andrew Einstein P&S Nonsen. ae2214@cumc.columbia.edu

Ten. Julia Hirschberg Co‐Chair SEAS Sen. julia@cs.columbia.edu

Ten. Matthew L. Jones Co‐Chair A&S/SS Sen. mjones@columbia.edu

Ten. Itsik Pe’er  SEAS  Nonsen. itsik@cs.columbia.edu

Ten. Henry Spotnitz P&S Sen. hms2@cumc.columbia.edu

Stu. Andrew Hsu GSAS/PS Sen. andrew.hsu@columbia.edu

Stu. Open . . .

Libraries  Teresa Harris Libraries Sen. tmh2004@columbia.edu

Admin. Staff Joel Rosenblatt Admin. Staff: Morningside‐Lamont Sen. jlr9@columbia.edu

Research Officers Nancy J. LoIacono Research Officers ‐ Professional Sen. njl2@cumc.columbia.edu

Admin. Maneesha Aggarwal Adm. Nonsen. maneesha@columbia.edu

Admin. Gaspare S. LoDuca Adm. Nonsen. gl2393@columbia.edu

Alum. Stephen Negron  Alum. Nonsen. stephen@negron.org

Honors and Prizes Committee (15)

Housing Policy Committee (11)

Information and Communications Technology Committee (13)

Prepared by Senate Office page 4 of 7 Updated 9/27/2018



UNIVERSITY SENATE

COMMITTEE ROSTERS 2018‐2019

Ten. Vincent Blasi LAW Sen. blasi@law.columbia.edu

Ten. Gary Natriello TC Nonsen. gjn6@columbia.edu

Ten. Open . . .

Ten. Open . . .

Ten. Open . . .

Ten. Open . . .

Nonten. Arthur M. Langer Co‐Chair SPS Nonsen. al261@columbia.edu

Nonten. Susan McGregor Co‐Chair JOURN Sen. sem2196@columbia.edu

Stu. Open . . .

Stu. Open . . .

Stu. Open . . .

Libraries  Ian Beilin Libraries Sen. igb4@columbia.edu

Libraries  Teresa Harris Libraries Sen. tmh2004@columbia.edu

Research Officers Habib Borjian Research Officers ‐ Professional Nonsen. hb146@columbia.edu

Admin. Gaspare S. LoDuca Adm. Nonsen. gl2393@columbia.edu

Admin. Ann D. Thornton Adm. Sen. adt2138@columbia.edu

Alum. Michael Garrett Alum. Nonsen. michaelgarrett@earthlink.net

Research Officers Manuela Buonanno Research Officers ‐ Professional Sen. mb3591@columbia.edu

Research Officers Nancy J. LoIacono Research Officers ‐ Professional Sen. njl2@cumc.columbia.edu

Research Officers Daniel Savin Chair Research Officers ‐ Professional Sen. savin@astro.columbia.edu

Research Officers Stefaan Van Liefferinge Vice Chair Research Officers ‐ Professional Sen. sv143@columbia.edu

Research Officers Angela D. Nelson Research Officers ‐ Staff Sen. adn2006@columbia.edu

Research Officers Regina Martuscello Research Officers ‐ Postdoctoral Sen. rm3419@columbia.edu

Research Officers Habib Borjian Research Officers ‐ Professional Nonsen. hb146@columbia.edu

Research Officers Sylwia Trzaska Research Officers ‐ Professional Nonsen. sat2101@columbia.edu

Research Officers Anna Cieslak Research Officers ‐ Postdoctoral Nonsen. aac2209@cumc.columbia.edu

Ten. Michael R. Rosen P&S Sen. mrr1@cumc.columbia.edu

Ten. Joseph Slaughter A&S/HUM Sen. jrs272@columbia.edu

Ten. Susan Bernofsky ARTS Sen. sb3270@columbia.edu

Ten. Open . . .

Nonten. Soulaymane Kachani SEAS Sen. kachani@ieor.columbia.edu

Nonten. Philip Genty LAW Nonsen. pgenty@law.columbia.edu

Stu. David T. Cheng SSW Sen. dtc2127@columbia.edu

Stu. Alfredo Dominguez CC Sen. ad3307@columbia.edu

Stu. Adara Rosenbaum BAR Nonsen. arr2202@barnard.edu

Stu. Eric D. Tang Co‐Chair LAW Sen. edt2109@columbia.edu

Stu. Open . . .

Libraries  Candice Kail Libraries Nonsen. cak2158@columbia.edu

Admin. Staff Janie Weiss  Admin. Staff: CUMC Sen. janie@columbia.edu

Research Officers Angela D. Nelson Co‐Chair Research Officers ‐ Staff Sen. adn2006@columbia.edu

Admin. Open Adm. open .

Admin. Open Adm. open .

Libraries and Digital Resources Committee (17)

Research Officers Committee (9)

Rules Committee (16)

Prepared by Senate Office page 5 of 7 Updated 9/27/2018



UNIVERSITY SENATE

COMMITTEE ROSTERS 2018‐2019

Ten. Jeanine D’Armiento P&S Sen. jmd12@cumc.columbia.edu

Ten. Clarisa Long LAW Sen. clong@law.columbia.edu

Ten. Debra Wolgemuth P&S Sen. djw3@cumc.columbia.edu

Ten. Open . . .

Ten. Open . . .

Ten. Open . . .

Nonten. Open . .

Stu. Mike Ford GSAS/HUM Sen. mlf2191@columbia.edu

Stu. Miranda Rehaut LAW Nonsen. miranda.rehaut@columbia.edu

Admin. Staff Paula Goodman Admin. Staff: Morningside‐Lamont Nonsen. plg47@columbia.edu

Research Officers Daniel Savin Research Officers ‐ Professional Sen. savin@astro.columbia.edu

Admin. Howard Jacobson  Adm. Nonsen. haj@gc.columbia.edu

Admin. Pearl Spiro Adm. Nonsen.‐tbc ps27@columbia.edu

Stu. Maria Fernanda Avila Ruiz SIPA Sen. ma3709@columbia.edu

Stu. Toqa Badran CC Sen. tmb2169@columbia.edu

Stu. Art Benoit Co‐Chair BUS Sen. abenoit19@gsb.columbia.edu

Stu. David T. Cheng SSW Sen. dtc2127@columbia.edu

Stu. Jonathan Criswell GS Sen. jonathan.criswell@columbia.edu

Stu. Kira Dennis Co‐Chair BAR Sen. kd2480@barnard.edu

Stu. Alfredo Dominguez CC Sen. ad3307@columbia.edu

Stu. Mike Ford GSAS/HUM Sen. mlf2191@columbia.edu

Stu. Andrew Hsu GSAS/PS Sen. andrew.hsu@columbia.edu

Stu. Luna Koizumi SPS Sen. lk2708@columbia.edu

Stu. James Piacentini Vice Chair GSAPP Sen. j.piacentini@columbia.edu

Stu. Zoha Qamar SEAS  Sen. zoq2001@columbia.edu

Stu. Danielle Resheff CC Sen. dr2886@columbia.edu

Stu. Gordon Slater ARTS Sen. gas2152@columbia.edu

Stu. Michael Sutton SEAS Sen. mms2306@columbia.edu

Stu. Eric D. Tang LAW Sen. edt2109@columbia.edu

Stu. Sally Xing GSAS/SS Sen. cx2186@columbia.edu

Stu. Julie Yoshimachi NURS Sen. jy2519@cumc.columbia.edu

Stu. Izabella Zant SPH Sen. inz2003@cumc.columbia.edu

Stu. Open . . .

Stu. Open . . .

Stu. Open . . .

Stu. Open . . .

Stu. Open . . .

UTS Stu. Obs. Open .

Student Affairs Committee (24+1 Student Observer)

Structure and Operations Committee (13)

Prepared by Senate Office page 6 of 7 Updated 9/27/2018



UNIVERSITY SENATE

COMMITTEE ROSTERS 2018‐2019

Ten. Jeanine D’Armiento Chair P&S Sen. jmd12@cumc.columbia.edu

Ten. Andrew R. Marks P&S Sen. arm42@cumc.columbia.edu

Ten. Susan Witte SSW Sen. ssw12@columbia.edu

Nonten. Lisa K. Northrop BAR Nonsen. lnorthro@barnard.edu

Nonten. Paola Valenti SIPA Sen. pv2194@columbia.edu

Stu. Zoha Qamar SEAS  Sen. zoq2001@columbia.edu

Stu. Danielle Resheff CC Sen. dr2886@columbia.edu

Stu. Izabella Zant SPH Sen. inz2003@cumc.columbia.edu

Libraries/Admin. 

Staff/Research Officers
Open . .

Admin. Staff Kuheli Dutt Admin. Staff: Morningside‐Lamont Nonsen. kuheli.dutt@columbia.edu

Admin. Staff Janie Weiss  Admin. Staff: CUMC Sen. janie@columbia.edu

Stu. Maria Fernanda Avila Ruiz SIPA Sen. ma3709@columbia.edu

Stu. Toqa Badran CC Sen. tmb2169@columbia.edu

Stu. Alfredo Dominguez CC Sen. ad3307@columbia.edu

Stu. Zoha Qamar Co‐Chair SEAS  Sen. zoq2001@columbia.edu

Stu. Izabella Zant SPH Sen. inz2003@cumc.columbia.edu

Ten. James Applegate A&S/PS Sen. jha@astro.columbia.edu

Ten. Jeanine D’Armiento P&S Sen. jmd12@cumc.columbia.edu

Nonten.  Shantanu Lal Co‐Chair CDM Nonsen. sl784@cumc.columbia.edu

Nonten. Yamile M. Marti SSW Sen. ymm2101@columbia.edu

Research Officers Danurys Sanchez Research Officers ‐ Staff Nonsen. dls167@cumc.columbia.edu

Admin. Dennis A. Mitchell Adm. Nonsen. dmitchell@columbia.edu

Admin. Ixchel Rosal Adm. Nonsen. irosal@columbia.edu

Stu. Obs. Open . .

Ten. Open . . .

Nonten. Open . .

Stu. Miranda Rehaut Commissioner LAW Nonsen. miranda.rehaut@columbia.edu

Libraries  Dana Neacsu Libraries Nonsen. dneacs@law.columbia.edu

Admin. Howard Jacobson  Adm. Nonsen. haj@gc.columbia.edu

Nonten. Soulaymane Kachani Co‐Chair SEAS Sen. kachani@ieor.columbia.edu

Nonten. Susan McGregor JOURN Sen. sem2196@columbia.edu

Ten. Matthew L. Jones A&S/SS Sen. mjones@columbia.edu

Ten. Letty Moss‐Salentijn Co‐Chair CDM Sen. lm23@cumc.columbia.edu

Ten. Robert Pollack A&S/PS  Sen. pollack@columbia.edu

Research Officers Daniel Savin Research Officers ‐ Professional Sen. savin@astro.columbia.edu

Commission on the Status of Women (11)

Commission on Diversity (12 and 1 student observer)

Benefits Subcommittee (A joint subcommittee of the Faculty Affairs and Budget Subcommittees)

Elections Commission (5)

Prepared by Senate Office page 7 of 7 Updated 9/27/2018



University Senate Proposed: September 28, 2018 

Adopted: September 28, 2018: 68 in favor, 

0 opposed, 0 abstentions

RESOLUTION TO ESTABLISH A DEPARTMENT OF AFRICAN-AMERICAN 
AND AFRICAN DIASPORA STUDIES IN THE ARTS AND SCIENCES 

WHEREAS Columbia’s Institute for Research in African American Studies (IRAAS) has 
become one of our nation’s top-tier programs in African American studies since its founding 
in 1993, and 

WHEREAS over the past decade, IRAAS has grown and its presence has expanded 
across the campus and into New York City, and 

WHEREAS the institute’s faculty offer a wide array of courses, and produce 
undergraduate majors, concentrators and master’s degree graduates, and 

WHEREAS in contrast to the vast majority of its peer institutions, African American 
Studies at Columbia are housed in an institute and not an actual department, and 

WHEREAS the institute has little power to independently shape the intellectual project of 
African American Studies in the Arts and Sciences through dedicated faculty hires, and its 
faculty are not fully enfranchised in the faculty governance process, deficiencies that would 
be remedied with departmental status, and 

WHEREAS Without a department, Columbia stands to lose stature amid a rapidly gaining 
field of contenders, and 

WHEREAS by creating a department, Columbia would reclaim its historical place in the 
field, being located near the community of Harlem, a historic cultural and political heart of 
the Black Diaspora, 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Senate approve the creation of a 
Department of African American and African Diaspora Studies, and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the proposal be forwarded to the Trustees for 
appropriate action. 

Proponent: 

Education Committee 

(see reverse) 



Proposal to Create 

an 

AFRICAN AMERICAN AND AFRICAN DIASPORA STUDIES DEPARTMENT 

FACULTY OF ARTS AND SCIENCES 

COLUMBIA UNIVERSITY 

Executive Summary 

African American and African Diaspora Studies is a vibrant, interdisciplinary intellectual 

enterprise that has transformed the way we think about the United States and the world. The 

scholarship produced by these fields has enhanced and expanded traditional academic disciplines.  

Currently African American Studies at Columbia is housed in the Institute for Research in 

African American Studies (IRAAS). Since its founding in 1993, IRAAS has been recognized as 

one of our nation’s preeminent programs in African American Studies.  We propose that the 

University now establish an African American and African Diaspora Studies Department within 

the Faculty of Arts and Sciences. IRAAS will continue to function as a research and 

programming unit within the new department.  

Without autonomy in hiring, without a supported doctoral program, and without support 

for a viable capital campaign, African American Studies at Columbia cannot be expected to 

continue this impressive trajectory. African American and African Diaspora Studies should be 

institutionalized as a Department with the ability to appoint its own faculty. A strong African 

American and African Diaspora Studies Department will play a vital role in training students to 

be engaged and informed global citizens, conducting research that helps to foster a greater 

understanding of the challenges that confront us, and building and sustaining strong community 

ties both within and outside of Columbia. 

The new African American and African Diaspora Studies Department will continue to 

draw its distinctive urban focus from its home in New York City, and proximity to Harlem, one 

of the intellectual and spiritual homes of the global black world. Our faculty and curriculum offer 

strengths in diasporic urbanities, political and religious thought, social justice and cultural studies. 

Through the new department of African American and African Diaspora Studies the University 

will place itself in the forefront of robust scholarly work that addresses vital intellectual, social, 

and cultural issues while offering a model of excellence, collaboration and innovation in teaching 

and scholarship.  



September 28, 2018 

SENATE RESEARCH OFFICERS COMMITTEE (ROC) 

2017-2018 ACADEMIC YEAR FINAL REPORT 

Here we provide brief summaries for a few of the highest-priority issues that the ROC 

addressed during the past year. 

Staff Officer Title Changes/Salary Equity Report. In February 2014, the Office of the 

Provost released its latest Salary Study of Officers of Research. This was a follow-up to a 

previous study, released in May 2010, which found a number of statistically significant 

differentials in pay by gender and race/ethnicity and included recommendations for 

addressing this issue. The follow-up study found almost exactly the same pay 

differentials. Some of the largest differentials were among the Staff Officers. The Office 

of the Provost is still working on increasing the number of Staff Officer grades from two 

to six so as to reclassify this population and repeat the study using titles that better reflect 

its levels of experience and responsibility. The ROC is very concerned that the 

reclassification process is taking so long to implement.  It is now over four and a half 

years since the last study was released. 

Addressing Postdoctoral issues with the Columbia Administration. The ROC has been in 

discussions with Chris Brown (Vice Provost for Faculty Affairs), Mike Purdy (Executive 

Vice President for Research), and Ericka Peterson (Director, Office of Postdoctoral 

Affairs) about several issues affecting the postdoctoral community.  These discussions 

have led to some improvements in the Postdoctoral Teaching Policy. We hope these 

policy changes, to be rolled out soon, will remove some of the current obstacles facing 

postdoctoral researchers who desire to teach. The ROC has also drawn the 

administration’s attention to a number of mental health issues present in the postdoctoral 

and associate research scientist communities. In response, the Offices of Faculty Affairs 

and of the EVP for Research have started an initiative to survey grad students, postdocs, 

and associate research scientists, via an outside consulting firm, to identify key areas 

where Columbia can better assist its employees and graduate students. This initiative has 

benefited from collaboration with the Office of Postdoctoral Affairs and the Columbia 

University Postdoc Society. 

Town Hall Meetings for Postdoctoral Researchers. Two were held in March—one on 

Morningside and one at CUMC—and one in May at Lamont.  Brief presentations were 

given by the Chair or Vice-Chair of the ROC, by Ombuds Officer Joan Waters, by Ericka 

Peterson, and by Postdoc Senator Regina Martuscello for the Columbia University 

Postdoctoral Society (CUPS).  One of the major issues raised was misconduct by 

Principal Investigators. Postdocs said some PIs have verbally abused or threatened them, 

made sexual advances to them, or overworked them, sometimes prohibiting them from 

taking vacation days.  Other major problems for postdocs include insufficient housing 



Research Officers Committee Annual Report 2017-2018/page 2 of 2 

and childcare resources, as well as uncertainty about their benefits and contract terms. .  

There is also a general sense that postdocs are treated better at Cornell and NYU than at 

Columbia. 

Meetings with university administrators and others 

 Michael E. Stokes, Co-President, Columbia University Postdoctoral Society

(15 Aug 2017).

 Ericka Peterson, Director, Office of Postdoctoral Affairs (14 Nov 2017).

 Chris Brown, Vice Provost for Faculty Affairs; G. Michael Purdy, Executive Vice

President for Research; Pearl Spiro, Associate Provost; Ericka Peterson

(13 Dec 2017).

 Joint meeting with the Senate Housing Policy Committee (01 Mar 2018).

 Joan Waters, Ombuds Officer, and her aide Jeimy Batista (17 Apr 2018).

 Geraldine Mc Allister, Senate Director (12 Jun 2018).

Some issues for the coming year 

 Salary equity, annual raises, and salary minimums

 Staff Officer titles reclassification

 Housing (esp. for first year foreign national postdocs)

 PI misconduct survey

 Promotion policy

Respectfully, 

University Senate Research Officers Committee 2017-2018 

DANIEL WOLF SAVIN, Chair, Senior Research Scientist, Astrophysics Laboratory 

HABIB BORJIAN, Associate Research Scholar, Center for Iranian Studies 

MANUELA BUONANNO, Associate Research Scientist, Center for Radiological Research 

NANCY LOIACONO, Associate Research Scientist, Environmental Health Sciences 

REGINA MARTUSCELLO, Postdoctoral Research Scientist, Pathology 

SMARANDA MURESAN, Vice Chair, Research Scientist, Data Science Institute 

ANGELA D. NELSON, Senior Staff Associate, Nephrology 

SYLVIA TRZASKA, Associate Research Scientist, Center for International Earth Science 

Information Network 

STEFAAN VAN LIEFFERINGE, Associate Research Scholar, Department of Art History and 

Archeology 



 
University Senate  
 
 

COMMITTEE ON EXTERNAL RELATIONS AND RESEARCH POLICY 
 

ANNUAL REPORT 2017-2018 
 
 
At the start of the academic year, the Committee on External Relations and Research Policy decided 
to devote its major effort to devising a Resolution on Freedom of Expression on Campus. The 
Committee felt that this issue was highly relevant to its mandate to review and recommend policies 
for the University’s external relations involving public affairs, especially given the recent media 
attention to contentious speakers on campuses, including our own. Freedom of expression also 
affects research. 
 
In October 2017, the Committee heard from invited guest Greg Lukianoff, president of the 
Foundation for Individual Rights in Education (FIRE). Mr. Lukianoff, a lawyer, spoke about threats 
to free speech on college campuses, threats that he felt had been intensifying over the past several 
years. His position was that colleges could do more to promote dialogue between opposing factions 
rather than allow them to engage in protests and heckler’s vetoes. He noted his organization’s 
ratings of American colleges and universities’ protections of campus free speech. (FIRE gives 
Columbia a speech code rating “Yellow,” which it gives to colleges and universities “with at least 
one ambiguous policy that too easily encourages administrative abuse and arbitrary application.”) 
 
Over the next few months, the Committee debated various aspects of a proposal defending free 
expression on campus, especially for guest speakers, and proposing a series of town hall meetings on 
contemporary issues. This was spearheaded by Sen. Eli Noam (Ten., Business). The resolutions were 
intended to complement a resolution from the Faculty Affairs Committee regarding academic 
freedom in the classroom. The Committee ultimately decided to work jointly on a resolution with 
the Student Affairs Committee with Sen. James Piacentini (Stu., GSAPP), a member of both 
External Relations and Student Affairs, playing a key role as a mediator between the committees. 
This effort led to a final Resolution in Support of Freedom of Expression on Campus that the 
Senate unanimously passed (without abstentions) at the February 23, 2018, plenary. The resolution 
uses the First Amendment as a guideline for principles that govern University speech and also 
outlines the creation of town hall meetings in which students can discuss ideas and respond to 
speakers. After passage, the Committee had some questions regarding how this Resolution will be 
implemented. 
 
The Committee received its annual update from Executive Vice President for Communications 
David Stone and his team about University communications, specifically its reception to the 
redesigned university website. The Committee was generally impressed by these efforts. (The 
Committee really appreciates its annual updates from David, who will be stepping down from this 
role at the end of September.) The Committee also received an update from Vice President for 
Government and Community Affairs Karen Jewett (who is also a member of the Committee). 
Accompanying Ms. Jewett at this meeting were Tricia Shimamura, Senior Project Coordinator, 
Government and Community Affairs; Flores Forbes, Associate Vice President, Strategic Policies and 
Programs; and Victoria Mason-Ailey, Associate Vice President, Planning and Community Affairs. 



External Relations and Research Policy Committee Annual Report 2017-2018/page 2 of 2 

The guests discussed the Community Scholars, Project Art, Outreach to Disconnected Youth, and 
other community programs supported by the office. They also described the COSMOS wireless 
research platform, supported by the National Science Foundation, which is testing a next-generation 
wireless communication system in the community. Columbia representatives have attended 
community meetings to explain the project and allay some neighborhood suspicions.  
 
In April, Rudi Odeh-Ramadan, Vice President for Research Administration, gave an update on 
research funding. Total research awards to Columbia in FY17 were $1,080.6 million, a 1.9% increase 
over FY16. This was driven primarily by a 13% annual increase in NIH funding at CUMC. While 
the overall increase in funding is laudable in this highly competitive environment, it is barely keeping 
up with the core inflation rate. Ms. Odeh-Ramadan also noted that CUMC is testing a new financial 
application called MyGrant, which is easy to use and gives a snapshot of the funds for all of a 
principal investigator’s projects. It will soon be rolled out at Morningside as well. MyGrant 
apparently addresses a major deficiency of ARC system that many funded researchers have 
complained about.  
 
At the end of the academic year, the Committee revisited the School of Professional Studies (SPS), 
including the new Columbia “campus” opening in San Francisco. Several members of the 
Committee joined members of the Budget Review and Education Committees on a subcommittee 
to further look into the expansion and academic oversight of SPS.  
 
Howard J. Worman  
Chair, Committee on External Relations and Research Policy 
 
 

External Relations and Research Policy Committee 2017-2018 

Ten. Jeanine D’Armiento  P&S senator 

Ten. Mary Gamble  SPH senator 

Ten. Eli M. Noam  BUS senator 

Ten. Samuel Sia  SEAS nonsen 

Ten. Howard Worman Chair P&S  senator 

Nonten. William Duggan  BUS senator 

Nonten. Megan Mroczkowski Vice Chair P&S senator 

Stu. Yu Cheng  GSAS/HUM senator 

Stu. Julie Yoshimachi  NURS senator 

Stu. James Piacentini Vice Chair GSAPP senator 

Libraries William Vanti  Libraries nonsenator 

Research 
Officers 

Manuela Buonanno  Research Officers - Professional senator 

Research 
Officers 

Smaranda Muresan  Research Officers - Professional senator 

Admin. Karen E. Jewett  Administration nonsenator 

Admin. Naomi Schrag  Administration nonsenator 

 



 
 

ALUMNI RELATIONS COMMITTEE 
2017-18 ANNUAL REPORT 

 
This year the University Senate Alumni Relations Committee focused on three primary goals: 
 

● Further developing CU there! to informally connect more students and alumni over the 
summer months; 

● Increasing alumni awareness of available CU Library resources (many free of charge);  
● Encouraging global centers to increase proactive efforts with alumni. 
 

 
CU there! Progress and Challenges – Summer 2018 
 
Note: There were differences in the execution and publicity for CU there! events between the 
summers of 2017 and 2018. 
 
In 2017, social media, the Spectator and other outlets were used to publicize the CU there! 
program. Student senators emailed their respective student populations and wrote letters to deans 
of students and alumni directors, encouraging their constituents to sign up for CU there!. 

● In 2017, eight events were held in Manhattan 
● Issues in 2017 included high attrition rates, demands on staff for registration and 

management of events. 
 
In 2018, the entire student body was once again invited to participate in CU there! via an email 
from the Student Affairs Committee of the University Senate. 

● In 2018, four events (rather than eight) were held in Manhattan 
● In 2018, CAA used NationBuilder to help organize CU there! to reduce the management 

time needed from CAA staff members. 
● In NYC:  Students who signed up for the CU there! NYC through NationBuilder received 

event invitations. 
○ Students were required to sign up for each event individually.  
○ Students that did not show up to two events throughout the summer did not 

receive subsequent invites. Students were reminded of this policy in all event 
invitations, reminders and post-event communications. 

● Outside of NYC:  Students were required to sign up through regional clubs’ 
NationBuilder pages rather than through the CAA. Clubs used registration data to 
determine the best way to engage CU there! students, rather than a CAA directive to all 
clubs to hold CU there! events. Results from a post-summer survey of participating club 
leaders are currently being collected and analyzed. 



2 
 

2 

CU there! NYC Data Summer 2018* 
 

● Sign-ups for the overall program (All 2018 CU there! events reached registration 
capacity and were sold out) 

○ 2017 - 3,063 registrants  
○ 2018 - 1,477 registrants  

● CU there! student event registration  
○ 2017 - 1,002 registrants 
○ 2018 - 471 registrants  

● Percentage of CU there! student registrants attending events 
○ 2017 - 365 attendees (36%) 
○ 2018 - 287 attendees (61%) 

● Email open rates of 42% in 2018, number not applicable to CU there! 2017  
● Event attrition 

○ 2017 - average of 64% attrition rate 
○ 2018 - average of 42% attrition rate, 15 students removed from the list for two no-

shows  
● Student attendees came from all 18 schools for CU there! NYC 

○ 2017 - Greatest participation from Columbia College, Engineering, and SIPA. 
○ 2018 - Greatest participation from Columbia College (23%), Engineering (20%), 

and the Business School (12%).  
● Alumni attendees came from 17/18 schools (no Dental Medicine alumni attended) 

○ 2018 – Greatest participation from CC, SEAS and Business for alums of all ages; 
greatest participation from SEAS, SPS, CC, BUS and JRN for 2018 alums. 

● Among attendees 
○  unique student attendees (79%); 38 attended more than one event 
○  146 unique alumni attendees  (68%); 16 attended more than one event  

● Top five regional club sign-ups were Northern CA, Boston, Washington DC, Southern 
CA and Brooklyn 

● Top five international club sign-ups were Shanghai, London, Hong Kong, Seoul and 
France 

 
Future of CU there!: Considerations for Summer 2019 
 

● Relative success with registration and attrition issues from last year 
● Continued need to identify type of events that would appeal to students from the 18 

different schools and backgrounds 
● Consider offering CU there! programs that address life skills for new graduates, e.g. 

finding an apartment, building new social networks, navigating personal finances 



3 
 

3 

● Brainstorm whether specialized event types are needed to increase appeal across different 
schools, degree types 

● Some ideas: speed-dating networking event, informal hiking or walking tour event, “how 
to network” sessions, CAA sponsored catered dinner at Carmine’s 

● Networking and informal mentoring found to have large appeal to students 
● CU there! type events over Thanksgiving holiday vs. keeping a “Summer” brand event 
● Other CAA events this year include: Columbia Fiction Foundry, CAA Arts Access, the 

Columbia Club, the Classic Car Club, the SoHo/Village area, alumni homes 
● Possible CU there! event on college walk 
● Potential for giveaways 

 
*Special thanks to Donna MacPhee and CAA team (Paul Lindberg, Elisa Douglas, Genna 
Farley and Michael DiSarno) for CU there! data. 
 
 
Alumni and Libraries 
 
Allison Morrow, Associate Director, Communications (Libraries) met with the Alumni Relations 
Committee: 
 
Issues for consideration: 
 

● Need to increase alumni awareness regarding their access to the Columbia Libraries. 
● Libraries’ expense base has risen and they need to broaden their fundraising reach. 
● The Libraries would like to include alumni of all programs across the University and 

College in their communications. 
● Libraries can send a one-time email to newly graduated alumni, informing them of 

lifetime in-person access and e-resource access, free of charge. 
● Strategy to engage alumni: A recent alumni survey found that alumni consider library 

privileges the most highly valued benefit of being a Columbia graduate. 
 
Ann Thornton stated that the Libraries are committed to continuing extension of benefits to 
alumni. Most peer institutions don’t extend Libraries licenses to alumni. 
 
Allison Morrow and Kim McCann encourage all Columbia schools to remind alumni that they 
have access to the Libraries. They are also reconstituting “Friends of Libraries”, with the long-
range plan is to broaden awareness of Library services. 
 
 
 



4 
 

4 

Alumni and Global Centers 
 

Professor Safwan Masri, Executive VP for Global Centers and Global Development, met with 
the committee. Issues for consideration include: 
 

● Global Center directors may increase alumni engagement by being proactive with alumni, 
e.g. by hosting networking events.   

● Committee might work on an app to help alumni drop in on global centers 
● Global Centers share alumni news through annual newsletters and their website.  
● Centers have been planning ahead strategically to be more relevant and engage with 

people dealing with world events, e.g., Brexit, polarization, U.S. elections, restrictions on 
journalists, and democracies under stress in Turkey, Hungary, and India. 

● Fifteen percent of faculty engaged with the global centers.  
● Centers may help Columbia affiliates take their knowledge and apply it to specific global 

challenges. 
● For faculty who don’t have international relationships, the global centers can provide 

connections with foundations, NGOs, etc. 
● The committee hopes that future Global Center events will be advertised widely to 

alumni. 
● Prof. Masri stated that the centers are trying to leverage Columbia’s silo structure, by 

creating customized targeted opportunities in the global centers.  
 
 
2017-2018 Committee Guests: 
 

● Chris McGarry (Director of Entrepreneurship, University Office of Alumni      
Development, and Director of Columbia Labs) 

● Genna Farley (Assistant Director, Shared Interest Groups, CAA) 
● Soulaymane Kachani (Vice Provost for Teaching and Learning) and Sandesh Tuladhar 

(Director of Online Education)  
● Professor Safwan Masri, Executive VP for Global Centers and Global Development 
● Paul Hersch, Associate Director, Strategic Planning and Communication, Columbia 

Global Centers 
● Jaclyn Chu, Sr. Director, Global Strategic Engagement for Alumni Relations       
● Allison Morrow, Associate Director, Communications (Libraries) 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
Sharon Liebowitz, Kurt Roeloffs, and Michelle Estilo Kaiser 
Co-Chairs, Alumni Relations Committee 
September 28, 2018 



5 
 

5 

Committee Roster: 

Dorothea Lasky ARTS Senator dsl2121@columbia.edu 

Joshua Schenk CC Senator jms2430@columbia.edu 

Smaranda Muresan 
Research Officers - 
Professional 

Senator smara@columbia.edu 

Donna MacPhee Adm Nonsenator dhm18@columbia.edu 

Sharon Liebowitz  
(Co-chair) 

Alum. Senator sjliebowitz@gmail.com 

Kurt Roeloffs  
(Co-chair) Alum. Senator kwr3@caa.columbia.edu 

Michael Anagnos CC Observer michael.anagnos@columbia.edu 

Sally Hull CDM Senator sah2207@cumc.columbia.edu 

Daniel McConnell P&S Senator dm2798@columbia.edu 

Jessie Mygatt Morningside / 
Lamont 

Observer jsm9@columbia.edu 

Gerald Sherwin Alum. Observer gs481@juno.com 

Hartley du Pont Alum. Observer hartleydupont@aol.com 

Michael Garrett Alum. Observer michaelgarrett@earthlink.net 

 



University Senate       September 28, 2018 
 

 

 

COMMITTEE ON HOUSING POLICY  

ANNUAL REPORT 2017-18 

 
This year the Housing Policy Committee considered a wide variety of issues. We expect 

that a number of these issues will reach the full University Senate in the 2018-19 academic 

year. 

 
1. In fall 2017, the Office of the Provost provided an overview of the state of University 

Apartment Housing. As of November 2016 (last numbers available), Columbia owned 

5,792 apartments that were occupied by 7,905 tenants. Students make up 71 percent 

(5,613) of the tenant population, followed by Officers of Instruction (11.8% - 932) and 

statutory tenants (6.1% - 482). Of the Officers of Instruction, 50 percent (468) come from 

the Graduate School of Arts and Sciences, 15 percent (143) from the Medical Center and 

10 percent (94) from the Fu Foundation School of Engineering and Applied Science. 

 

2. Based on this report, members of the Housing Policy Committee, working in close 

collaboration with the Provost, explored the future development of Columbia’s housing 

stock and policies. For example, the economic advantages, disadvantages and trade-offs 

among various financial mechanisms to provide University housing were discussed.  

Potential options include buying new buildings, selling existing buildings, building new 

buildings, renting additional buildings, and providing direct financial incentives such as 

subsidized mortgages and stipends to faculty and other constituents.  

 

3. Furthermore, the committee explored ways to best promote new housing opportunities in 

the Manhattanville neighborhood, in order to make it lively and safe when the campus 

itself is fully built and occupied. The goal should be to ensure that the housing format 

most favors a vibrant urban neighborhood. The agreements with New York City, made as 

part of the Manhattanville development, included a number of housing requirements, but it 

can be expected that the need exceeds those numbers. A joint meeting with the Senate 

Campus Planning and Physical Development Committee (CPPDC) focused on these and 

related topics concerning the Manhattanville development. It was agreed to continue these 

discussions with CPPDC and another joint meeting has been scheduled for the academic 

year 2018-2019. 

 

4. Given that an increasing number of tenants make complaints concerning smoking in 

Columbia-owned apartments, the Committee discussed a potential new non-smoking 



Housing Policy Committee Annual Report 2017-18 

Page 2 of 3 
 

policy specifically for Columbia housing. Columbia already has a non-smoking policy in 

Columbia dorms and academic buildings. After discussing various aspects of this issue, 

the Committee now plans to recommend a non-smoking clause for all new leases.  

 

5. Postdoctoral Research Officers’ housing was discussed at a joint meeting with the Senate 

Research Officers Committee (ROC). It was noted that Columbia housing stock is highly 

constrained and oversubscribed and members of the two committees would like to find a 

way to help Postdoctoral Research Officers. Columbia offers less housing than local peer 

institutions, such as Memorial Sloane Kettering and New York University. The Office of 

Postdoctoral Affairs has various mechanisms in place to assist Postdoctoral Research 

Officers, but these are not widely used. One way to alleviate the problem would be to 

increase the number of units assigned to Postdoctoral Research Officers from 300 to 400, 

and at the same time limit leases to one year. In this way, new postdocs have one year to 

find alternate solutions. Members of ROC agreed to develop a formal proposal to be 

discussed at this year’s joint meeting with the Housing Policy Committee.  

 

6. The year 2017-2018 saw the fifth round of the Housing Mobility Program, a program in 

which the administration invites Columbia faculty to negotiate terms for giving up their 

apartments. Twenty-four applications were received. It is planned to continue the program 

in the coming years, as this provides one mechanism to relieve the housing shortage for 

faculty. 

 

7. Sen. Robert (Bob) Pollack (Professor of Biological Sciences and Director of University 

Seminars) sought the Committee’s input on the idea of intergenerational housing. An 

intergenerational residence program would connect retired faculty with undergraduate 

students interested in serving as companions to those in retirement. Students would have 

the opportunity to affect positively the lives of these elderly individuals, while benefiting 

from the mentorship of retired faculty. All students in the program would be selected from 

the existing “At Your Service” Program at Columbia, an organization that places 

volunteers with residents at Terence Cardinal Cooke Health Care Center, a skilled nursing 

facility located at Fifth Avenue and 105th Street. It was agreed that for further 

consideration a formal proposal should be developed that provided more details on 

specific policies and the financial structures needed to sustain such a program. 

  



Housing Policy Committee Annual Report 2017-18 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 

 
2017-2018 Guest Speakers 

• Patrice Derrington, Vice Chair,  Campus Planning and Physical Development 

Committee; Holliday Associate Professor of Real Estate Development; Director, Master 

of Science in Real Estate Program GSAAP; Director of the Center for Urban Real Estate 

(Sen.; GSAPP) 

• David Greenberg, Executive Vice President, University Facilities and Operations 

• Ericka Peterson, Director, Office of Postdoctoral Affairs 

• Robert (Bob) Pollack, Professor of Biological Sciences, and Director of University 

Seminars (Sen.; A&S/PS);  

• Members of the Campus Planning and Physical Development Committee  

• Members of the Research Officers Committee 

 

 

2017-2018 Senate Housing Policy Committee Membership  

• Donald Davis, Ph.D.; Ragnar Nurkse Professor of Economics (Nonsenator) 

• William Duggan, Ph.D.; Senior Lecturer in Business; Co-Chair (Sen.; BUS)  

• Troy Eggers, Vice Provost for Administration and Planning (Nonsenator) 

• Jeffrey N. Gordon, J.D., Richard Paul Richman Professor of Law (Nonsenator)  

• Andreas H. Hielscher, Ph.D., Professor of Biomedical Engineering, Electrical 

Engineering, and Radiology (Physics); Co-Chair (Sen.; SEAS) 

• James Piacentini, Student, Graduate School of Architecture, Planning and 

Preservation (Sen.; GSAPP) 

• Lynne Sagalyn, Ph.D., Special Lecturer in Business and Earle W. Kazis and 

Benjamin Schore Professor Emerita of Real Estate (Observer) 

• Michael E. Stokes, Postdoctoral Officer of Research (Nonsenator) 

• Joseph Ulichny, Associate in Chemistry (Sen.; A&S/NS) 

• James Wang, Vice President, Facilities (Nonsenator) 

• Frank Wolf, Ph.D., Dean Emeritus of the School of Professional Studies (Observer) 

• Weiping Wu, Ph.D., Professor of Architecture, Planning and Preservation; Director 

of the M.S. Urban Planning Program in the Faculty of Architecture, Planning and 

Preservation (Sen.; GSAPP)  

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Andreas H. Hielscher and William Duggan  

Co-Chairs, Housing Policy Committee 


	Plenary Agenda_20180928
	Sen minutes 20180427
	University Senate_Resolution AAAD Resolution_20180928
	University Senate_Research Officers Committee annual report 2017-18
	University Senate_External Relations & Research Policy Annual Report 2017-2018
	University Senate_Alumni Relations Annual Report 2017-2018
	University Senate_Housing Policy_Annual Report 2017-18_Final
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



